SITE NUMBER: WA-V-361

ADDRESS: southeast corner of Cumberland and Mill Streets, Clear
Spring, MD

OWNER/LOT NUMBER/ACCESS: St. John'’s United Church of Christ
BUILDING DATE: 1866

This 1is a north-facing, vertically massed, two-story, three-
bay, brick, freestanding, ecclesiastical structure. The Classical
Revival building, which is set back from the public-right-of-way on
an open lawn, is laid in common bond and has been sandblasted. The
open, frame steeple is the tallest landmark in Clear Spring. The
church has a front—gable, artificial roll roof. The front facade
is composed of three bays that are delineated in brick, and a
classical pediment in the gable end. The entrance is located in
the center bay and is composed of double doors topped by a six-
light transom. The doors are Victorian with heavy paneling. The
flanking bays have tall, rectangular stained glass windows. The
cornerstone is inscribed with the date: 1866. The building has two
one-story mid-20th century additions on the back.

According to a history of the church, the congregation was
founded in 1828 and the church was constructed in 1866. This
congregation was located on this site in 1877, according to the
historic map of that date. The 1922 Sanborn shows the extant
structure and notes that it had hot water heat, electric lights,
and was 26’ to the eaves. According to the map, the address was
241 Cumberland.

The building is within the Western Maryland Geographic
Organization, the Development Period of Agricultural-Industrial
Dominance, and falls within the Historic Period Themes of Economic;

and Architecture, Landscape Architecture, and Community Planning.

Prepared by Julianne Mueller, July 1992




CONTINUATION SHEET SURVEY NO. WA-V-361
7. DESCRIPTION
MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN:
STATEWIDE HISTORIC CONTEXT
Geographic Organization: Western Maryland

Chronological/Development Periods: Agricultural-Industrial

Transition
Historic Period Theme: Religion; and Architecture, Landscape

Architecture, and Community Planning

Resource Type:
Category: building
Historic Environment: small, rural town
Historilic Function and Use: church
Known Design Source: unknown




Survey No.WA-V-361

Magi No.

Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic St. John's Reformed Church

and/or common gt. John's United Church of Christ

2. Location

. Mi d EBast Cumberland Streets
street & number Southeast corner of S ill an

____not for publication

Clear Spring

city, town —vicinity of congressional district
Maryland Washington
state county
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—district- —— public —__ occupied - agriculture _____museum
_X building(s) _* private - unoccupied — commercial — park
— structure __ both - work in progress __ educational _.__ private residence
—_ site Public Acquisitien Accessible — entertainment _%_religious
_—— object —__inprocess X yes: restricted —___government - scientific
4 —__being considered —___yes: unrestricted — industrial —_transportation
___not applicable __ no ___ military ____other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name St. John's Reformed Church (St. John's United Church of Christ)
street & number As above . telephone no.:
city, town Clear Spring state and zip code MD 217322

5. Location of Legal Description

Washington County Courthouse

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. liber
street & number Summit Avenue and West Washington Street folio

Hagerstown ' MD
city, town state

6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys

title Survey of Clear Spring
date Oct. 1991- August 1992 __federal ____state county - local
pository for survey records Maryland Historical Trust

city, town Crownsville state MD




7. Description Survey Nog _y_361

Condition Check one Check one

X excelient — deteriorated ____ unalitered ___ original site

—_good ____ruins X altered — moved date of move
— fair —_unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

SEE ATTACHED



8. Significance Survey No. wa-v-361

Period Areas of Significance—--Check and justify below

____prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture _=_ religion
1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation —law - science

~~ 15600-1599 ___ agriculture —___economics — literature — sculpture

.1600-1699 __* architecture — education — military — social/

—1700-1799 ____ art ____engineering — music humanitarian

—X 1800-1899 ____ commerce ——exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

— 1900- — communications — industry ____politics/government __ transportation

— invention — other (specify)

1866

Specific dates Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: x A B xC _ D

and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state x local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬂ\eral statement of history and
support. |

SEE ATTACHED




9. Major Bibliographical References

Survey No. wWa-v-361

SEE ATTACHED

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangie name

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references

Quadrangle scale
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Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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Y I N T | cla bl I T R T T R B I A
Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Julianne Mueller

organization

date August 1992

street & number 2730 Ordway Street, N.W. #6

telephone 202-364-6594

city or town Washington, D.C.

state 20008

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory

was officially created by

an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated

Code of Maryland, Article 41,

Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to:
Shaw House
21 State Circle

Maryland Historical Trust

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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The Setting

St. John’s United Church of Christ is sited on the southeast corner
of Mill and Cumberland Streets located in Clear Spring, Washington
County. Cumberland Street is the o0ld National Pike and is the
principal thoroughfare in Clear Spring, the street along which most
of the town’s buildings stand. Mill Street has become an important
road in that it 1is the point of entry into Clear Spring when

exiting from U.S. 70 which is nearby. This intersection,
therefore, is the first that many people see when arriving in Clear
Spring. The church is an important landmark--its tall steeple

tower provides Clear Spring with one of its few visual landmarks
that can be seen from a distance.

The church property also includes an early 20th century parsonage
to the east of the church.

The Exterior

St. John’s is a north-facing, vertically massed, two-story, three-
bay, brick, freestanding, ecclesiastical structure. The Classical
Revival building, which is set back from the public-right-of-way on
an open lawn, is laid in common bond and has been sandblasted. The
open, frame steeple is the tallest landmark in Clear Spring. The
church has a front-gable, artificial roll roof. The front facade
is composed of three bays that are delineated in brick, and a
classical pediment in the gable end. The entrance is located in
the center bay and is composed of double doors topped by a six-
light transom. The doors are Victorian with heavy paneling. The
flanking bays have tall, rectangular stained glass windows. A
sandstone cornerstone provides the date of construction: 1886.
The building has two, one-story, additions on the back--one dating
to 1954, the other to the 1980s.

The Interior

The interior is divided into two stories. Upon entering the
building, there are sets of stairs to the right and left which lead
to the second floor where the sanctuary is located. They also lead
downstairs to the ground floor, where, below the sanctuary, are the
Sunday School/meeting rooms, offices, and kitchen.

Upon arriving to the second floor there is a hall which leads into
the sanctuary. Entry into this space is through a set of double
doors that lead to the center aisle. The sanctuary is laid out
with seating in two, slightly curved rows of pews. The altar is
slightly raised. The apse is round-arched and slightly recessed to
create a niche. The arch is defined by dark wood paneling. The
choir is seated to the east of the altar, in front of the 1923
Moller Pipe organ which is located in the southeast corner of the
space. The pulpit is located just to the west of the niche. The
walls of the sanctuary are plastered and have ceiling moldings. A
balcony or gallery is located at the back of the church. It is
reached by a set of stairs in the hallway. Two doors at the back
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of the gallery provide access to the steeple.

The sanctuary is light with a series of recessed, ceiling, canned
lights, as well as an immense crown chandelier at the center of the
room. The apse is backlight.

The interior of the sanctuary was recently renovated. This work
included the removal of a dropped ceiling and florescent lights,
the installation of the new lighting system (the formerly gas
chandelier was converted to electricity in the 1920s), the
installation of new carpeting, and the rearrangement of choir pews
so that they face the congregation. Central air conditioning was
installed, allowing for the removal of window units.

The ground floor is divided into several spaces, the largest of
which is an open room with a stage. This room serves the entire
town for community meetings and events. Several smaller rooms are
located off of this space, including meeting rooms and offices. A
long hall leads into the additions where restrooms and a large
kitchen are located.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

The history of St. John’s begins with the founding of the St.
John'’s Congregation in Clear Spring in 1828. Its first church was
built in cooperation with the town’s Lutheran congregation sometime
between 1828 and 1838.' The Congregation was organized as St.
John’s Reformed Church in 1834.

The Lutheran and Reformed congregations remained linked in Clear
Spring until 1860, when the Reformed Church sold their interest in
their church building to the Lutherans. For five years, until they
prepared to build their own church, the congregation rented the
Radical Church, located on what are now the grounds of Clear Spring
High School. During this time, the Civil War affected this church,
as 1t did most churches in the area. The building served as a
hospital for soldiers wounded in nearby battles.

Following the end of the Civil War, 1in September 1865, the
congregation agreed to purchase a parcel of 1land for the
construction of their own German Reformed church. The parcel was
Lot 18, originally sold by Martin Myer to James Prather in 1822
(Liber FF, Folio 949). A committee was formed to supervise the
building of the new church and to raise funds for it. In August
1866, Samuel Miller was retained to complete the carpentry work
within one year of the as yet unbuilt church. Building materials
were provided by Fellinger and Summers and the cornerstone was laid
August 16, 1866.°2 According to the diary of Otho Nesbitt, a
prominent Clear Spring citizen and landowner, the new church was
dedicated on February 14, 1869. The furnishings had been made and
donated to the church by congregation member E.. Frantz, who was a
locally renown furniture maker.’ That same year, Mrs. Sarah Heller
donated a house and land adjacent to the new church on the east for
a parsonage.

According to Sharf’s History of Western Maryland, St. John'’s was
one of seven churches in Clear Spring in the 1910s. At that time,
the town’s population was nearly twice what it is today, and many
of Clear Spring’s prominent families worshiped at this church.

At the turn of the century, forty vears after the church was first
constructed, a number of repairs were undertaken. In addition, the

! This situation was not unique to Clear Spring. The Lutheran
and German Reformed congregations in Boonsboro also joined to build
their first church.

¢ "A Review of the History of St. John’s." printed leaflet by
Nora McDonald Snyder, 1966.

® Check oral history with Hilda Frantz Cushwa (July 1992), his
granddaughter for additional information on this family that had a
local furniture and undertaking business in the community for
several generations.
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old parsonage was demolished and a new one constructed in 1904 at
a cost of $3,000 (see WA-V-362). Under the direction of Rev.
Klingaman, a stable and carriage shed were constructed in 1911 and,
in 1914, new walnut pews were installed in the sanctuary.? And in
1923 a new organ, a manual Moller Pipe organ was purchased. It was
also during this period that the building was converted from gas to
electric lighting. The 1922 Sanborn notes that the church had hot
water heat, electric lights, and was 26’ to the eaves.

During the long pastorate of Rev. J. Wade Huffman, which began in
1931, the church wunderwent more alterations, including the
rearrangement of the chancel, and the construction of an addition
to the church to house a school in 1954. 1In 1957, the stable and
carriage house were demolished to make room for a new garage.

The 1970s saw more changes to the building. During this time, the
exterior of the building was sandblasted and the interior of the
sanctuary was remodeled with the installation of a drop ceiling and
florescent 1lights. In 1984, the Sunday School/meeting are was
expanded with another addition that includes a large kitchen.
During 1990, many of the interior alterations that had been made to
the sanctuary were reversed and much of the interior was renovated.
This included the rearrangement of the pews to reopen the center
aisle, the laying of a new reproduction carpet that is more in
keeping with the 1860s construction date of the building, the
removal of window air condition units, and the painting of the
walls and trim to reflect more accurately the original colors.

Significance

A preliminary evaluation of the church was made in November 1991 by
Julianne Mueller during a survey of Boonsboro. At that time a
survey site number WA-V-361 was assigned and it was determined that
the site is a contributing element to Clear Spring‘’s historic
character. A summary sheet on the building with photographs was
submitted to the Maryland Historical Trust in August 1992. ° The
summary provides a basic description of the site and places it
within the Maryland Comprehensive State Historic Preservation Plan:
State Historic Context (Western Maryland Geographic Organization;
the Development Period of Agricultural-Industrial Transition; the
Historic Period Themes of Religion; and Architecture, Landscape
Architecture, and Community Planning).

Upon the suggestion of the Clear Spring Historical Society, the
general history of the church was researched. It was concluded
that the site is a good example of ecclesiastical architecture in
Clear Spring and that the church’s role in the development of the
town is an important and wvital one. The building qualifies for
listing on the National Register as a contributing element to the
overall historical character of the town, and meets eligibility

* Two of the original Frantz pews are located in the
sanctuary’s gallery today.




Wh-v- 36/

Criteria A and C for listing on the Maryland Register.

Criterion A -- The property is associated with significant
historical events. The church is one of the
early congregations in Clear Spring and has
played a significant role in the history of
the town.

Criterion B -- The property is not associated with a
gsignificant person.

Criterion C -- The building exhibits exceptional

: architectural design, method of construction,
or craftsmanship, or is the product of a
trained architect.

Criterion D -- The property may provide important information
about history or prehistory. The property has
not been assessed for its archeological
potential. However, due to the construction
of large additions on much of the church lot,
the probability is low that objects associated
with the history of the site are extant.
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